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MISSION
STATEMENT

"To become country’s most
investor-focused company,
by assisting investors

in achieving their financial goals."
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Board of Directors of NBP Fund Management Limited is pleased to present the fifteenth Annual Report of NBP
Islamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Fund's Performance

FY22 remained a disappointing year for the stock market, as the KMI-30 index fell by around 10.3% on a yearly basis.
This comes after robust return in FY21 when index surged by a healthy 39.3% YoY. Throughout the year, the market
remained quite volatile amid thin volumes, traded within a range and showing lack of investors' interest.

The subdued equity market performance was despite robust corporate profitability of listed companies, which for the
first three quarters of FY22 stood at 25% and, even after the imposition of super tax, is expected to deliver double digit
growth. Investors remained focused on external numbers, especially the burgeoning current account deficit (CAD) which
rose sharply to USD 17.3 billion in FY22 (up from USD 2.8 billion in FY21). Strong aggregate domestic demand and
ongoing commodity super-cycle amidst the conflict between Russia & Ukraine worsened the external trade numbers.
Market participants also remained wary of impact of elevated commaodity prices on inflation, which averaged around
12.2% in FY22, with June-22 monthly inflation at multi-year high of 21.3%. The international bond yields rose substantially
during the period. To compress both external imbalances and rampant inflation, the central bank raised Policy Rates
aggressively by a cumulative 6.75% in FY22. For the same reason, PKR also devalued by a whopping 30% during the
year. The inordinate delay in resumption of IMF program remained another reason for nervousness in the market. The
downgrade of Pakistan from MSCI Emerging Market to MSCI Frontier Market also took place during the year, necessitating
rebalancing on part of foreign investors that resulted in sizeable foreign outflows, which further dented market performance.
Lastly, there was heightened political uncertainty in the country as the ruling party lost its majority in the assembly and
new coalition government was formed.

In terms of sector wise performance, Auto Assemblers, Chemicals, Commercial Banks, Fertilizers, Oil & Gas Exploration,
and Power Generation & Distribution sectors outperformed the market. On the other hand, Auto Parts & Acc., Cable &
Electrical Goods, Cements, Engineering, Food & Personal Care, Insurance, Oil & Gas Marketing, Pharmaceutical,
Refinery, and Technology sectors lagged the market. On participants-wise market activity, Foreigners and Mutual Funds
were the largest net sellers with outflows of around USD 298 million and USD 128 million, respectively. On the contrary,
Individuals & Bank/DFls increased their net holdings by around USD 157 million and USD 115 million, respectively.

Trading activity in corporate sukuks further reduced as cumulative traded value stood at Rs. 4 billion compared to Rs.
16 billion in FY21. However, the fresh issuance of Shariah Compliant commercial papers helped the undersupplied
market for long-term Shariah Compliant debt instruments to some extent. During FY22, State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
held five (5) monetary Policy Meetings and increased the discount rate from 8% to 14.75% - to counter inflationary
pressures, ensure economic sustainability and safeguard external & price stability; owing to significant domestic political
noise and global uncertainty. During the second half, global economic conditions deteriorated due to Russia-Ukraine
conflict and burgeoning commaodity prices, which pushed all the central banks across the world to confront multi-year
high inflation and challenging outlook. Domestically, the inflation trajectory also remained on an uptrend due to i) sharp
spike in prices of food component, ii) continued pressure on the Rupee, iii) increase in utility tariffs, and iv) reversal of
fuel subsidies. Inflation as measured by CPI clocked in at 21.3% in June-22 as against 9.7% during corresponding
month last year. Gross foreign exchange reserves with SBP also shrunk to USD 9.8 billion at June-22 end compared
to USD 17.3 billion a year ago. The outlook for inflation has deteriorated and risks to external stability have risen, with
further rate hikes likely in the initial half of the upcoming year.

During the fiscal year, NBP Islamic Asset Allocation Fund decreased by 8.9% versus 7.4% decrease in the benchmark.
Thus, the Fund underperformed the benchmark by 1.5% during the year. NISIF underperformed during the year was
because the Fund was overweight in key stocks in Cement, Engineering, Textile Composite, and Glass & Ceramics,
Automobile Parts & Accessories sectors that underperformed the market and was underweight in key stocks in Fertilizer,
Oil & Gas Exploration Companies, Automobile Assembler, and Technology & Communication Companies, sectors that
outperformed the market. Since its launch (October 26, 2007), the Fund has risen by 331.2%, versus the benchmark
return of 201.8%, thus to date outperformance is 129.4%. This outperformance is net of management fee and all other
expenses. The Fund size is 3,102 min as of June 30, 2022.

NBP Islamic Asset Allocation Fund has incurred total loss of Rs. 133.23 million during the year. After incurring total
expenses of Rs. 180.91 million, the net loss is Rs. 314.14 million. During the year, the unit price of NAFA Islamic Sarmaya
Izafa Fund has increased from Rs. 16.7187 (Ex-Div) on June 30, 2021 to Rs. 15.2302 on June 30, 2022. The resultant
per unit loss is Rs. 1.4885 (-8.90%).
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The asset allocation of NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund as on June 30, 2022 is as follows:

Cash Equivalents and Others
including receivables, 10.0% 0il & Gas Exploration

Companies, 21.8%
Sukuk, 10.9%

Cement, 10.9%

Others, 26.8%
Fertilizer, 7.0%

Power Generation &
Distribution, 7.0%

Technology & Communication,
5.6%

Income Distribution

Due to net loss for the year, no distribution has been made.

Taxation

On account of net loss, no provision for taxation was made in the financial statements of the Fund.

Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF)

On August 13, 2021, provisioning against Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund by NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund amounting
to Rs. 91.54 million has been reversed on the clarification received by Sindh Revenue Board vide letter No.
SRB/TP/70/2013/8772 dated August 12, 2021 addressed to Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan. This reversal of
provision has contributed towards an unusual increase in NAV of the NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund by 1.69% on
August 13, 2021. This is one-off event and is not likely to be repeated in the future.

Auditors

The present auditors, Messrs Yousuf Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman Chartered Accountants, retired and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment for the year ending June 30, 2023.

Directors' Statement in Compliance with best practices contained in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017

1. The financial statements, prepared by the management company, present fairly the state of affairs of the Fund,
the result of its operations, cash flows and statement of movement in unit holders' funds.

2. Proper books of account of the Fund have been maintained.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements. Accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of
financial statements.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

6. There are no significant doubts upon the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern.

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of Corporate Governance.

8. A performance table/ key financial data is given in this annual report.
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9. Outstanding statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges, if any, have been fully disclosed
in the financial statements.

10. The Board of Directors of the Management Company held five meetings during the year. The attendance of
all directors is disclosed in the note 28 to these financial statements.

11. The detailed pattern of unit holding is disclosed in the note 27 to these financial statements.

12. All trades in the units of the Fund, carried out by directors, CEO, CFO, Company Secretary and their spouses
and minor children are disclosed in note 24 to these financial statements.

13. The Management Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors on its Board.
The Company, being an un-listed company, does not have any minority interest. As at June 30, 2022, the Board
included:

Category Names

1. Mr. Khalid Mansoor

Independent Directors 2. Mr. Saad Amanullah Khan
3. Mr. Humayun Bashir

Executive Director Dr. Amjad Waheed - Chief Executive Officer
1. Shaikh Muhammad Abdul Wahid Sethi (Chairman)
2. Mr. Taugeer Mazhar

Non-Executive Directors | 3. Ms. Mehnaz Salar
4. Mr. Ali Saigol
5. Mr. Imran Zaffar

Acknowledgement

The Board takes this opportunity to thank its valued unit-holders for their confidence and trust in the Management
Company, and providing the opportunity to serve them. It also offers its sincere gratitude to the Securities & Exchange
Commission of Pakistan and State Bank of Pakistan for their patronage and guidance.

The Board also wishes to place on record its appreciation for the hard work, dedication and commitment shown by the
staff and the Trustee.

On behalf of the Board of
NBP Fund Management Limited

Chief Executive Director

Date: September 27, 2022
Place: Karachi.

A




NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND | & NBP FUNDSl

i 300 3 5yl e
e S ie L S 202202300 St gz sk § (NISIF) S - L INBP S S A3 T3y £ o2 23NBP
o
Gl
L0039 38 AU 21 LS 010 3L 7 st < 0 EIKMIFB0 £l Ui £ S22
-d)&%uruf@%}(fu”@L//;’é@?ﬂéﬂvgcu@duﬁKflﬂ’Z/L’"&KLK[&,{?MUU}}LJV@/{-MM

S sft ursenrin £ 36E S $.u25 Uit F IS 220080 S2e G Pt S G 1 £ By 5 L i)
2 8UFY2DIE 117 3 S e §E 22082 (CADD S 5K S 2 22 p b Pl p ot (e 9 SUss Bl e B
AIMASETEMEL LS it 32 b p e I e L st S S r\ £ s end o Sy sl s (D36 1
Gt il 2 f1- L ok I A a1 b AU 22-u2 e w1220 P22 e Bl Z e b e I Ut
sl EadiB.75 4 U LSt 22 L B LS i d e inotn 3oims ot Sl i
oG 188 (g Ut L 2003 Ut bl S ST B 8 30% sl LSt B B e a1 L
L PSenfSuiine e Sunbl Ede Pdn G UL Ut Il AMSCle Ll AIMSCI gind
BN R T (A W CY A AR LSO Pt B B I A S PRIV I

Ux

Aotk H e LML RS s A s e A i Tt fo e P W UL Sy
{_fgu:bugit;fﬁ&)%/,!d/@/rfkt/ﬁ<ﬂtij.guj'u"u%ﬁu;}lj&sy.ﬂ/ ek P e o A .~q[§!,‘q'ﬁgil’
o s f P st AL AL NS A 1285058 12082 P\ B Sl (g S e e BUL e

B A 1B B 5T 2 Pt e P e 12 DFIs G %L

2Pt b1 Lo St fepe S s 0 d 0L 162 b A S 8 et ey
S e T U(8) T (SBR) e L ST il 22 Bl biu BV e Sl e et
S14.75% Sl e 8% 2556316l £ bl il st bpm b G G LG50 L b e i
b SN ST T UL A sl Pl i Vel Gl b SU3E e P S 3E  S Uil GG L
SR GG o iedlole S 2 U U $i1 81 2 Luibee 2 Ut b g U S & S b esT B
AL e Fd0. Tl 2 1L Do S udon 3Ut22-00b S Fe § CPI b ¥ S (v te o
L L 18 N I LN P19 8 ST 22-2d oL I8 E P17 3S UL 38AL s S

e U LA T L e B

L NISIF- QU018 1.5% Ut S L 8l JUAi-tse fF 8.9% 1L NG T A% 553101 L I-INBPelsd -l
AN U Srettnsl i S wﬂ'utuxiéwaﬂaéjuifﬂ}?mu{w{‘j@@j OO I AN NI
AL o B SN E Ut o Gl Pl oo e PR S s I A T2 S i S
212045 E L T AT P 30331 24 L o) N E 20182 S (2007 45126) 36Tt - Freai L

e 3,102 202202307 K e Pbastel bl A bl A3 S LK

(L A




NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND | NBP FUNDSl

L B18A8USI bt L& e AL o 1180.91 L B8 62013323 0m L S B30 - L1 dof!
Lu’o:&fq%mszsoz/ ZOZZUKSO/DZL(EX-DN)%U’I6.7187}’/ 2021¢230ed fey £ 43I LW INBP s Ji—a
e P L Al e § T, o (-8.90%) (P 314885052y &

e LS LB 20220230

Cash Equivalents and Others
inchuding receivabies, 10,0% 0l & Gas Exgloration
Companies, 21.8%

Sukuk, 10.9%

Cement, 10.9%

Others, 26.8%
Fevtilizes, 7.0%

Power Generation &
v B C icati istril , 7.0%
5.6%

o T
= JU e S L e

U et 3 e L e ST A

(SWWF) 5425 s i

= 1§ 20212112 3, SRBITPI70/2013/8772 Aot piot & 0y S b5 Ssmiimee 3PS 435001 - K WINBPY 202124113
£ 20211325, L Uty -F6/ A b b s 9158 F AU | ST 8 oy Koo St i
e UL Tl S 2 Er ) L e 3135775 6 1.69% UENAY £ 5351« L INBP

b b
/ﬁ.)
L LG Pt T L LI Y 20230230 4ok S s bl vt S 5610 et bt oy e 3 T

gl A

-
/

AU ("CCGM2017 A sy KOTHE U

L S sean S S Bl ey B L Ut S S K S Sl S bl e a2 Qs S e PSS et ‘
B e I L S 2

el U e (b e S St b b SIS S L 3

e B6a b SIEUE e s U U SN B QU S Su Qe 4

—eded S SUlsle Bt & }7;0;1%@@/&1 5

Y. SN\ VG SRVl SR o 6

B SRS (A O S

Y A




NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND | NBP FUNDSl

—Sete A e, 8

U FE LA s OGS i taS 2 2yt urE
e JGbt 28 AL U B AL I o S G L ST L il east 10
—e Vb 27 AL st dosE K ey -1

Srbtaae il gsntd Qheiess oy 200 L BUL oS SASUE A Pmalo L SIS EF BSalSISI A o2
P

30 Ftes ;-‘Gm»éjité'gn&fiuj;éugﬁ%&/ Gidor § S A 152K !ut/ugtg/éuﬁj}f/’l5._ﬂw,’%l&{ 13
P I 3o ST 202202

r 74

/J“’A,lebglr? o] . )
oo 2 2 SR #
AUtz 3

AT 2) st 15 Rt

(EAEeis )
P 9 SR
M2y 3
ﬁ“&vb 4
Auft *5

Jomy
Syt gJTﬂ 5 ey Ul Py el SR S ool 2t L B Cor1is
- U/J'}’-"(ff@ugfjgiuliLéW//ﬁ'&g/Juwng.@

_ﬁ;t'f;‘l:atU/?3/Q/Lﬁui';a|jl'g,’4;[Uz’/‘Z:rfu'J&JLJ)J&/"MJWZ;UA}

AT
Il 2 NP
s AL

+2022 F 275t
Gl e

Dy




NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND NEBP FUNDS

NBP Fund Management Limited

TRUSTEE REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

Report of the Trustee pursuant to Regulation 41(h) and Clause 9 of Schedule V of the Non-Banking Finance
Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008

We, Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited, being the Trustee of NBP Islamic Sarmaya |zafa Fund (the Fund)
are of the opinion that NBP Fund Management Limited being the Management Company of the Fund has in all material
respects managed the Fund during the year ended June 30, 2022 in accordance with the provisions of the following:

(i) Limitations imposed on the investment powers of the Management Company under the constitutive
documents of the Fund;

(i) The pricing, issuance and redemption of units are carried out in accordance with the requirements
of the constitutive documents of the Fund; and

(iii) The Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003, the Non-Banking
Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and the constitutive documents of the
Fund.

Badiuddin Akber
Chief Executive Officer
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited

Karachi, September 28, 2022
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FUND MANAGER REPORT

NBP Islamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund
NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund (NISIF) is an Open-ended Shariah Compliant Asset Allocation Fund
Investment Objective of the Fund

Objective of NISIF is to generate capital appreciation by investing in Shariah Compliant equity and equity related
securities and income by investing in Shariah Compliant bank deposits, debt & money market securities.

Benchmark

Daily weighted return of KMI-30 Index & 6-month average deposit rates of three A rated Islamic Banks/Islamic windows
of conventional banks as selected by MUFAP, based on Fund's actual allocation, effective from September 01, 2016.
Previously average of (i) average 3-months Islamic banks deposit rate

(ii) 6-months KIBOR or its Shariah Complaint Equivalent (iii) KMI 30 Index.

The fund category was changed to Islamic Asset Allocation from Islamic Balanced with effect from April 22, 2014.
Consequently, allowed equity range is now 0% to 90% which previously was 30% to 70%. Previous benchmark was
50% KSE-30 Index & 50% 3-month Islamic Bank Deposit.

Fund performance review

This is the fifteenth annual report of the Fund. During the fiscal year, NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund decreased by
8.9% versus the benchmark decreased by 7.4%. Thus, the Fund underperformed the benchmark by 1.5% during the
year. Since its launch (October 26, 2007), the Fund has risen by 331.2%, versus the benchmark return of 201.8%, thus
to date outperformance is 129.4%. This outperformance is net of management fee and all other expenses. During the
year, the fund size of NISIF decreased by 45% to Rs 3,102 min.

NISIF underperformed during the year was because the Fund was overweight in key stocks in Cement, Engineering,
Textile Composite, and Glass & Ceramics, Automobile Parts & Accessories sectors that underperformed the market
and was underweight in key stocks in Fertilizer, Oil & Gas Exploration Companies, Automobile Assembler, and Technology
& Communication Companies, sectors that outperformed the market. The chart below shows the performance of NISIF
against the Benchmark for the year.

NISIF Performance vs. Benchmark during FY22

NISIF == Benchmark

Al
30-Nov-21

-7.4%
-8.9%

1-May-22

Y

NISIF was around 80.8% invested in equities at the beginning of the year. During the year, we adjusted the allocation
of the Fund based on our view on different asset classes. Towards the end of the year, NISIF was around 79.2% invested
in equities.

FY22 remained a disappointing year for the stock market, as the KMI-30 index fell by around 10.3% on a yearly basis.
This comes after robust return in FY21 when index surged by a healthy 39.3% YoY. Throughout the year, the market
remained quite volatile amid thin volumes, traded within a range and showing lack of investors' interest.
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The subdued equity market performance was despite robust corporate profitability of listed companies, which for the
first three quarters of FY22 stood at 25% and, even after the imposition of super tax, is expected to deliver double digit
growth. Investors remained focused on external numbers, especially the burgeoning current account deficit (CAD) which
rose sharply to USD 17.4 billion in FY22 (up from USD 2.8 billion in FY21). Strong aggregate domestic demand and
ongoing commodity super-cycle amidst the conflict between Russia & Ukraine worsened the external trade numbers.
Market participants also remained wary of impact of elevated commodity prices on inflation, which averaged around
12.1% in FY22, with June-22 monthly inflation at multi-year high of 21.3%. The international bond yields rose substantially
during the period. To compress both external imbalances and rampant inflation, the central bank raised Policy Rates
aggressively by a cumulative 6.75% in FY22. For the same reason, PKR also devalued by a whopping 30% during the
year. The inordinate delay in resumption of IMF program remained another reason for nervousness in the market. The
downgrade of Pakistan from MSCI Emerging Market to MSCI Frontier Market also took place during the year, necessitating
rebalancing on part of foreign investors that resulted in sizeable foreign outflows, which further dented market performance.
Lastly, there was heightened political uncertainty in the country as the ruling party lost its majority in the assembly and
new coalition government was formed.

In terms of sector wise performance, Auto Assemblers, Chemicals, Commercial Banks, Fertilizers, Oil & Gas Exploration,
and Power Generation & Distribution sectors outperformed the market. On the other hand, Auto Parts & Acc., Cable &
Electrical Goods, Cements, Engineering, Food & Personal Care, Insurance, Oil & Gas Marketing, Pharmaceutical,
Refinery, and Technology sectors lagged the market. On participants-wise market activity, Foreigners and Mutual Funds
were the largest net sellers with outflows of around USD 298 million and USD 128 million, respectively. On the contrary,
Individuals & Bank/DFls increased their net holdings by around USD 157 million and USD 115 million, respectively.

Trading activity in corporate sukuks further reduced as cumulative traded value stood at Rs. 4 billion compared to Rs.
16 billion in FY21. However, the fresh issuance of Shariah Compliant commercial papers helped the undersupplied
market for long-term Shariah Compliant debt instruments to some extent. During FY22, State Bank of Pakistan (SBP)
held five (5) Monetary Policy Meetings and increased the discount rate from 8% to 14.75% - to counter inflationary
pressures, ensure economic sustainability and safeguard external & price stability; owing to significant domestic political
noise and global uncertainty. During the second half, global economic conditions deteriorated due to Russia-Ukraine
conflict and burgeoning commaodity prices, which pushed all the central banks across the world to confront multi-year
high inflation and challenging outlook. Domestically, the inflation trajectory also remained on an uptrend due to i) sharp
spike in prices of food component, ii) continued pressure on Rupee, iii) increase in utility tariffs, and iv) reversal of fuel
subsidies. Inflation as measured by CPI clocked in at 21.3% in June-22 as against 9.7% during corresponding month
last year. Gross foreign exchange reserves with SBP also shrunk to USD 9.8 billion at June-22 end compared to USD
17.3 billion a year ago. The outlook for inflation has deteriorated and risks to external stability have risen, with further
rate hikes likely in the initial half of the upcoming year.

On August 13, 2021, provisioning against Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund by NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund amounting
to Rs. 89.94 million has been reversed on the clarification received by Sindh Revenue Board vide letter No.
SRB/TP/70/2013/8772 dated August 12, 2021 addressed to Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan. This reversal of
provision has contributed towards an unusual increase in NAV of the NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund by 1.69% on
August 13, 2021. This is one-off event and is not likely to be repeated in the future.

During the period there has been no significant change in the state of affairs of the Fund, other than stated above.
During the year there were no circumstances that materially affected any interests of the unit holders. The Fund does
not have any soft commission arrangement with any broker in the industry.

Income Distribution

Due to net loss for the year, no distribution has been made

Asset Allocation of the Fund (% of NAV)

Particulars 30-Jun-22 30-Jun-21
Equities / Stocks 79.2% 80.76%
Cash Equivalents 11.2% 12.01%
TFC/Sukuk 11.0% 10.69%
Other Net Assets / (Liabilities) (1.4%) -3.46%
Total 100.0% 100.00%
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Details of Non-Compliant Investments

Particulars Type of Value of Investment | Provision [ Value of Investment | % Net | % Gross
Investment before Provision held after Provision Assets | Assets

Eden Housing (Sukuk I1) SUKUK 4,921,875 4,921,875 - - -

Total 4,921,875 4,921,875 - - -

Unit Holding Pattern of NBP Islamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund as on June 30, 2022

Size of Unit Holding (Units) # of Unit Holders
0-0.99 91
1-1000 2,151

1001-5000 762

5001-10000 666
10001-50000 1,359

50001-100000 489

100001-500000 330

500001-1000000 39

1000001-5000000 17

5000001-10000000 1

Total 5,905

During the period under question:

There has been no significant change in the state of affairs of the Fund, other than stated above. NBP Pakistan Growth
Exchange Trade Fund does not have any soft commission arrangement with any broker in the industry.

Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund (SWWF)

On August 13, 2021, provisioning against Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund by NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund amounting
to Rs. 91.54 million has been reversed on the clarification received by Sindh Revenue Board vide letter No.
SRB/TP/70/2013/8772 dated August 12, 2021 addressed to Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan. This reversal of
provision has contributed towards an unusual increase in NAV of the NBP Islamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund by 1.69% on
August 13, 2021. This is one-off event and is not likely to be repeated in the future.
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE SHARIAH PRINCIPLES

NBP Islamic Sarmaya lIzafa Fund (the Fund) has fully complied with the Shari'ah principles specified in the Trust Deed
and in the guidelines issued by the Shari'ah Advisor for its operations, investments and placements made during the
year ended June 30, 2022. This has been duly confirmed by the Shari'ah Supervisory Board of the Fund.

For and behalf of the board

Date: September 27, 2022 Dr. Amjad Waheed, CFA
Karachi Chief Executive Officer
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REPORT OF THE SHARIAH SUPERVISORY BOARD

September 12, 2022/Safar 15, 1444

Alhamdulillah, the period from July 1, 2021 to June 30, 2022 was the Forteenth year of operations of NBP Islamic
Sarmaya lzafa Fund (NISIF). This report is being issued in accordance with clause 3.6.8 of the Offering Document of
the Fund. The scope of the report is to express an opinion on the Shari'ah Compliance of the Fund's activity.

We have prescribed six criteria for Shari'ah compliance of equity investments which relate to (i) Nature of business,
(if) Debt to total assets, (iii) Investment in Shari'ah Non-Compliant activities (iv) Shari'ah Non-Income from Non-Compliant
Investments, (v) llliquid assets to total assets, and (vi) Net liquid assets per share vs. share price.

It is the responsibility of the management company of the fund to establish and maintain a system of internal controls
to ensure Shari'ah compliance in line with the Shari'ah guidelines. Our responsibility is to express an opinion, based
on our review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified. A review is limited primarily to inquiries
from the management company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the management company
to comply with the prescribed criteria.

i We have reviewed and approved the modes of equity investments of NISIF in light of Shari‘ah requirements.
Following is a list of top investments of NISIF as on June 30, 2022 and their evaluation according to the screening
criteria established by us. (December 31, 2021 accounts of the Investee companies have been used)

U] (i) (iif) (iv) (v) (vi)
Non- liquid | NetLiquid Assets vs.
Debt to Non- Compliant | s cets | Share Price (B>A)
Company Name Nature of Assets Compliant Income to to Total | Net Liquid
Business (<37%) Investment Gross Assets etLiqu Share
’ s (<33%) Revenue 5% Assets per | o0 (B)
(<5%) (>25%) Share (A)
. Oil & Gas
E"g;g:;;ﬂ'j;?;‘e 4 | Exploration 0.45% 14.42% 2.86% 4963% | 31241 | 1654.23
Companies
Ei’;?iig dcorporat'on Fertilizer 34.95% 20.92% 3.32% 57.41% | (220.62)
Oil & Gas Oil & Gas
Development Exploration 0.00% 21.69% 4.22% 27.26% 116.37 86.2
Company Limited * | Companies
Power
Hub Power Generation & o o o o
Company Limited Distribution 33.91% 3.85% 4.50% 58.76% (42.73)
Companies
Systems Limited Technology 6.82% 4.26% 0.77% 43.71% 30.29 759.84
Pakistan Petroleum Oil & Gas
Limited * Exploration 0.00% 16.70% 2.53% 26.13% 96.98 79.04
Companies

* Shares are considered 'Compliant' based on the reasoning mentioned in clause 8 of Shariah Standard 59.

ii. On the basis of information provided by the management and the provisions of the Scheme, investments in
equities made on account of NISIF are Shari'ah Compliant and in accordance with the criteria established by

us.
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iii. There are investments made by NISIF where Investee companies have earned a part of their income from non-
compliant sources (e.g. interest income received on bank deposits and etc). In such cases, the management
company has been directed to set aside such proportion of the income from Investee companies as charity in
order to purify the earnings of the Fund.

In light of the above, we hereby certify that nothing has come to our attention which causes to believe that the overall
operations of NISIF for the year ended June 30, 2022 are not in compliance with the Shari'ah principles.

During the year, fund booked charity of amounting PKR 7,160,071/- wherein amount available for disbursement is PKR
6,685,965/, which is inclusive of PKR 3,002,635/- provisional amount of previous year adjusted after availability of the
respective financial statements.

May Allah bless us with best Tawfeeq to accomplish our cherished tasks, make us successful in this world and in the
Hereafter, and forgive our mistakes.

For and On Behalf of Meezan Bank Limited
Shari'ah Technical Services and Support Provider

Mufti Muhammad Naveed Alam Mufti Ehsan Waquar Dr. Imran Ashraf Usmani
Member Shariah Advisor & Member Chairman
Shariah Supervisory Board Shariah Supervisory Board Shariah Supervisory Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TO THE UNIT HOLDERS

To the Unit holders of NBP Islamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of NBP Islamic Sarmaya |zafa Fund (the Fund), which comprise the statement
of assets and liabilities as at June 30, 2022, and income statement, statement of comprehensive income, statement
of movements in unit holder's fund, statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Fund as
at June 30, 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with approved
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund and the Management Company in accordance with
the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code)
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan together with the ethical requirements that are relevant
to our audit of the financial statements in Pakistan, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the

financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Investments
(refer note 5 to the financial statements)

Investments constitute the most significant component Our audit procedures included the following:
of the net asset value (NAV). Investments of the Fund
as at June 30, 2022 amounted to Rs. 2,794.958 million . obtained understanding of relevant controls placed
(2021: Rs. 5,131.729 million). by the Management Company applicable to the
account balance;

The existence and proper valuation of investments for

the determination of NAV of the Fund as at June 30, » verified existence of investments from Central
2022 was considered a high risk area and therefore we Depository Company (CDC) account statement,
considered this as a key audit matter. bank statements and other relevant documents;

* independently tested the valuations directly with
the prices published on Mutual Fund Association
of Pakistan (MUFAP) website.

«  performed test of details on sale and purchase of
investments on a sample basis.
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S. No. Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

* re-performed valuation to assess that
investments are carried as per the valuation
methodology specified in the accounting
policies.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance or conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors (the Board) for the Financial Statements

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
the approved accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the management either intends to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Fund's financial reporting process.
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Fund's internal control;
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management;

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern;

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

We communicate with the Board regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide to the Board with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Board, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in
our auditor's report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Further, we report that the Fund's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions
of Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 and Non-Banking Finance Companies

and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is Muhammad Shaukat Naseeb.

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Date: September 28, 2022
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2022 2021

Note  -------- Rupees in '000 --------
ASSETS
Bank balances 5 347,525 673,761
Investments 6 2,794,958 5,131,729
Mark-up accrued and dividend receivable 7 16,635 16,207
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 8 6,424 38,907
Receivable against sale of investment 5,782 -
Receivable against transfer of units 9 6,819 4,569
Total assets 3,178,143 5,865,173
LIABILITIES
Payable to NBP Fund Management Limited - Management Company 10 37,730 83,619
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan - Limited Trustee 11 383 633
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 12 905 1,166
Payable against redemption of units 13 5,447 21,117
Payable against purchase of investments - 3,120
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 14 31,340 144,102
Total liabilities 75,805 253,757
NET ASSETS 3,102,338 5,611,417
UNIT HOLDERS’ FUND (AS PER STATEMENT ATTACHED) 3,102,338 5,611,417
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 15

---------- Number of units ----------
NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE 16 203,696,124 335,637,170
---------------- Rupees ------======u---
NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT 17 15.2302 16.7187
The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For NBP Fund Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director

e A




NBP ISLAMIC SARMAYA IZAFA FUND | NBP FUNDSl

INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Note =------ Rupees in '000 -------
INCOME
Return / mark-up on:
- bank balances 38,781 58,036
- sukuks 41,372 127,675
Dividend income 242,434 151,088
Net (loss) / gain on sale of investments (26,614) 194,571
Net unrealised (dimunition)/ appreciation on re-measurement of investments
- at fair value through profit or loss 6.5 (519,148) 792,932
Total (loss) / income (223,175) 1,324,302
EXPENSES
Remuneration of NBP Fund Management Limited - Management Company 101 75,543 87,488
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 10.2 9,821 11,373
Reimbursement of operational expenses to the Management Company 10.3 8,858 7,831
Reimbursement of Selling and marketing expenses charged by
- the Management Company 10.4 73,385 93,834
Remuneration of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee 111 5,525 6,833
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 11.2 718 888
Annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan 12 905 1,167
Securities transaction costs 3,177 5,461
Settlement and bank charges 879 975
Auditors' remuneration 18 704 642
Fund rating fee 270 256
Legal and professional charges 286 110
Annual listing fee 28 27
Printing charges 135 172
Shariah advisor fee 676 750
Total expenses 180,910 217,809
Net (loss) / income from operating activities (404,085) 1,106,495
Reversal / (provision) for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 19 89,944 (22,130)
Net (loss)/ income for the year before taxation (314,141) 1,084,365
Taxation 20 - -
Net (loss) / income for the year after taxation (314,141) 1,084,365
Allocation of net income for the year
Net income for the year after taxation - 1,084,365
Income already paid on units redeemed - (384,070)
- 700,295
Accounting income available for distribution:
Relating to capital gain - 635,674
Excluding capital gain - 64,621
- 700,295
The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For NBP Fund Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
--------- Rupees in '000 ---------
Net (loss)/ income for the year after taxation (314,141) 1,084,365
ltems that will not be reclassified to income statement subsequently - -
Items that will be reclassified to income statement subsequently - -
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (314,141) 1,084,365
The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For NBP Fund Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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STATEMENT OF MOVEMENT IN UNITHOLDERS’ FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021
Undistributed Undistributed
Capital income / Total Capital income / Total
value accumulated value accumulated
loss loss
(Rupees in "000)
Net assets at beginning of the year 5,536,910 74,507 5,611,417 5544770 (500,800) 5,043,970
Issuance of 81,762,305 units (2021: 264,935,511 units)
- Capital value 1,366,963 - 1,366,963 || 3,758,135 - 3,758,135
- Element of income / (loss) (16,541) - (16,541) 550,744 - 550,744
Total proceeds on issuance of units 1,350,422 - 1,350,422 4,308,879 - 4,308,879
Redemption of 213,703,351 units (2021: 284,880,761 units)
- Capital value (3,572,842) - (3,572,842)| (4,041,060) - (4,041,060)
- Element of income 27,482 27,482 || (236,645) (384,070)  (620,715)
Total payments on redemption of units (3,545,360) - (3,545,360) (4,277,705) (384,070) (4,661,775)
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year - (314,141)  (314,141) - 1,084,365 1,084,365
Interim cash dividend - - - (39,034) (124,988)  (164,022)
Net assets at end of the year 3,341,972 (239,634) 3,102,338 5,536,910 74507 5,611,417
Accumulated (loss) / Undistributed income brought forward
- Realised (718,425) (570,849)
- Unrealised 792,932 70,049
74,507 (500,800)
Accounting income available for distribution
- Relating to capital gain - 635,674
- Excluding capital gain - 64,621
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year (314,141) 700,295
Annual distribution during the year - (124,988)
Accumulated (loss)/ income carried forward (239,634) 74,507
Accumulated gains / (loss) carried forward
- Realised gain/ (loss) 279,514 (718,425)
- Unrealised (loss)/gains (519,148) 792,932
(239,634) 74,507
- (Rupees) - - (Rupees) -
Net assets value per unit at beginning of the year 16.7187 14.1851
Net assets value per unit at end of the year 15.2302 16.7187
The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
For NBP Fund Management Limited
(Management Company)
Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

2022 2021

Note =-=-=---- Rupees in '000 ---------
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net (loss)/ income for the year before taxation (314,141) 1,084,365
Adjustments:
Return / mark-up on;
- bank balances (38,781) (58,036)
- sukuks (41,372) (127,675)
Dividend income (242,434) (151,088)
Net loss / (gain) on sale of investments 26,614 (194,571)
'Net unrealised (appreciation) / dimunition on re-measurement of investment 519,148 (792,932)

223175  (1,324,303)
(90,966) (239,938)

Decrease/ (increase) in assets

Investments - net 1,791,009 442,291
Receivable against sale of investments (5,912) -
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 32,483 (32,831)
1,817,580 409,460
(Decrease) / increase in liabilities
Payable to the Management Company (45,889) 36,309
Payable to the Trustee (250) 70
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (261) 97
Payable against purchase of investments (2,990) 3,120
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (112,763) 4,215
(162,153) 43,812
Mark-up received on bank balances 37,680 60,419
Mark-up received on sukuks received 40,312 145,710
Dividend received 244,167 149,140
Net cash used in operating activities 1,886,621 568,602
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Amounts received on issuance of units 1,348,172 4,266,073
Amounts paid on redemption of units (3,561,029) (4,658,358)
Dividend paid - (124,988)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,212,857) (517,273)
Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (326,236) 51,329
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 673,761 622,432
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 5 347,525 673,761

The annexed notes from 1 to 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.

For NBP Fund Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

1.1 NBP Islamic Sarmaya Izafa Fund (the Fund) was established under a Trust Deed executed between NBP Fund
Management Limited as the Management Company and Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
(CDC) as the Trustee. The Trust Deed was approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP) on August 17, 2007 in accordance with the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and
Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules). The Trust Deed was amended through supplemental trust deed
executed on February 19, 2019 for the change of name and categorization of the Fund as a shariah compliant
asset allocation scheme.

During the year ended June 30, 2021 the Trust Act, 1882 was repealed due to promulgation of Provincial Trust
Act namely " Sindh Trusts Act, 2020" ( The Sindh Trust Act) as empowered under the Eighteenth amendment
to the constitution of Pakistan. The fund is required to be registred under the Sindh Trust Act. Accordingly, on
October 14, 2021 the above mentioned trust deed has been registered under the Sindh Trust Act.

The Management Company of the Fund has been licensed to act as an Asset Management Company under
the NBFC Rules through a certificate of registration issued by SECP. The registered office of the Management
Company is situated at 7th floor, Clifton Diamond Building, Block No. 4, Scheme No. 5, Clifton, Karachi.

The Fund is an open-ended mutual fund and categorised as an islamic asset allocation scheme and its units
are listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Units of the Fund are offered for public subscription on a
continuous basis. The units of the Fund are transferable and can be redeemed by surrendering them to the
Fund.

The investment objective of the Fund is to generate income by investing in shariah compliant equity and equity
related securities and income by investing in shariah compliant bank deposits, debt and money market securities.

The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned an asset manager rating of 'AM1' to the
Management Company on August 22, 2022 and has assigned performance ranking of 3-star to the Fund on
August 10,2022.
Title of the assets of the Fund is held in the name of CDC as a trustee of the Fund.

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

21 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and

- Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulations) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), Non-
Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and
requirements of the Trust Deed.
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Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed differ from the
IFRS, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and requirements of the Trust Deed
have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the investments
which are stated at fair value.

23 Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of
the Fund.

24 Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. It requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application
of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about the
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas where
various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Fund's financial statements or where judgment was
exercised in the application of accounting policies are given below:
(a) classification and valuation of financial assets
(b) impairment of financial assets
(c) provisions

2.5 Accounting Convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that investments
have been carried at fair values. Further, the accrual basis of accounting is used except for the cash flow.

3 BASIS OF PRESENTATION
31 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017;

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 along with part VIIIA of the repealed
Companies Ordinance, 1984; and
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- the Non-Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 (the NBFC Rules), the
Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 (the NBFC Regulations) and
the requirements of the Trust Deed.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the repealed Companies
Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the Trust Deed differ from
the IFRS Standards, the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017, part VIIIA of the
repealed Companies Ordinance 1984, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the requirements of the
trust deed have been followed.

3.2 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant to the
Fund and adopted in the current year

The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations
of IFRSs which became effective during the current year.

IASB effective date "(Annual periods
beginning on or after)”

New or revised standard or interpretation Effective Date
Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018 - 2020 Cycle January 1, 2022
IFRS 3 - References to Conceptual Framework January 1, 2022
IAS 16 - Proceeds before intended use January 1, 2022
IAS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling a contract January 1, 2022
IFRS 16 - Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 April 1, 2021
3.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that may be relevant but not

yet effective and not early adopted by the Fund

The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from
the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or interpretation.

IASB effective date "(Annual periods
beginning on or after)"

Standard or Interpretation Effective Date
IAS 1 - Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current January 1, 2022

IAS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a

Single Transaction January 1, 2022
Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and

IFRS Practice Statement 2) January 1, 2022
IAS 8 - 'Definition of Accounting Estimates January 1, 2023

The Fund is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the
published standards on the financial statements of the Fund.
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Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP)

Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are
yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.

Standard or Interpretation IASB effective date "(Annual periods
beginning on or after)"

IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts January 1, 2023

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in these financial
statements.

4.1 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises current and saving accounts with banks. Cash equivalents are short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, are subject to insignificant change in value, and are held
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other purposes.

4.2 Financial assets and liabilities

4.21 Initial recognition

All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given
or received. These are subsequently measured at fair value or amortised cost as the case may be.

The Fund recognizes financial assets and financial liabilities on the date it becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are not recognized unless one of the parties has performed its part of the contract or the
contract is a derivative contract.

4.2.2 Classification and measurement

4.2.2.1 Financial assets
There are three principal classification categories for financial assets:
- Measured at amortized cost (“AC”),
- Fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) and
- Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”).

Financial asset at amortised cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Financial Asset at FVTOCI

A financial asset is measured at FVTOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated
as at FVTPL:

1) the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets; and

2) the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initial recognition, for an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Fund may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in fair value in OCI, only dividend income is recognised in income statement. This
election is made on an investment-by-investment basis.

FVTOCI financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes
in fair value recognised in OCI.

Financial asset at FVTPL

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL (for example: equity held for trading and debt
securities not classified either as AC or FVTOCI).

In addition, on initial recognition, the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVTOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after the Fund
changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value, with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recorded in the profit or loss

Business Model Assessment

The business model is determined under IFRS 9 at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. It is not an instrument-by-instrument analysis;
rather it can be performed at a higher level aggregation. It is typically observable through the activities that the
entity undertakes to achieve the objective of the business model; all relevant evidence that is available at the
date of the assessment (including history of sales of the financial assets) are considered. Following three
business models are defined under the IFRS 9:

1)  Hold to collect business model
2)  Hold to collect and sell business model
3) FVTPL business model"

Considering above, the Fund classifies its investments based on both the Fund’s business model for managing
those financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets. The evaluation of
the performance of the Fund has been performed on fair value basis for the entire portfolio, as reporting to the
key management personnel and to the investors in the form of net asset value (NAV). The investment portfolio
of financial assets is managed and performance is evaluated on a fair value basis. The Fund is primarily focused
on fair value information and uses that information to assess the assets’ performance and to make decisions.
Consequently, all the investments are measured at fair value through profit or loss. For other financial assets
which are held for collection continue to be measured at amortised cost.
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4.2.2.2 Financial laibilities

The fund classifies its financial liabilities in the following catergories

- Measured at amortized cost (AC) ;or
- Measured at Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) ;or

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such
as instruments held for trading or derivatives) or the Fund has opted to measure them at FVTPL.

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities

With regards to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as at fair value through profit or loss, IFRS
9 requires as follows:

- The amount of change in the fair value of a financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability is presented in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of such changes
in other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss.

- Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability's credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to
profit or loss. Under IAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of the financial liability
designated as fair value through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

4.2.3 Impairment of financial assets

The SECP has through its letter no. SCD/AMCW/RS/MUFAP/2017-148 dated November 21, 2017 has deferred
the applicability of the impairment requirements of IFRS 9 for debt securities on mutual funds. Therefore the
Fund will not be subject to the impairment provisions of IFRS 9. Meanwhile, asset management companies
shall continue to follow the requirements of Circular 33 of 2012.

For financial assets other than debt securities measured at amortised cost, IFRS 9 requires recognition of
impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model rather than incurred credit loss model as previously
required under IAS 39. Under IFRS 9, the Fund is requires to measure loss allowance equal to an amount equal
to lifetime ECL or 12 months ECL based on credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Fund considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Fund's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

However, majority of the assets of the Fund exposed to credit risk pertain to counter parties which have high
credit rating or where credit risk has not been increased since initial recognition. Therefore, management
believes that the impact of ECL would be very minimal and hence, the same has not been accounted for in
these financial statements.

4.2.4 Fair value measurement principles and provision
The fair value of financial instruments is determined as follows:

Basis of valuation of debt securities:

The fair value of debt securities (other than government securities) is based on the value determined and
announced by Mutual Funds association of Pakistan (MUFAP) in accordance with the criteria laid down in
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Circular No. 1 of 2009 and Circular No. 33 of 2012 issued by Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan
(SECP). In the determination of the rates, MUFAP takes into account the holding pattern of these securities
and categorises them as traded, thinly traded and non-traded securities. The aforementioned circular also
specifies the valuation process to be followed for each category as well as the criteria for the provisioning of
non-performing debt securities.

Basis of valuation of equity securities

The fair value of shares of listed companies is based on their prices quoted on the Pakistan Stock Exchange
Limited at the reporting date without any deduction for estimated future selling costs.

Net gains and losses arising on changes in the fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are taken to the income statement.

Basis of valuation of instruments (other than debt and government securities) at amortised cost

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets classified as amortised cost are carried at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses are also recognised in the income statement when financial assets carried at amortised cost
are derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process.

4.2.5 Regular way contracts
All purchases and sales of securities that require delivery within the time frame established by regulation or
market convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date is the date on which the Fund commits to
purchase or sell assets.

4.2.6 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the entity has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired.

4.2.7 Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the statement of assets
and liabilities if the Fund has a legal right to set off the transaction and also intends either to settle on a net
basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.3 Impairment of non financial assets

The carrying value of the Fund's assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment. If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of such asset is estimated. An
impairment loss is recognised whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
Impairment losses are recognised in the income statement. If in a subsequent period, the amount of an
impairment loss recognised decreases, the impairment is reversed through the Income Statement.

4.4 Issuance and redemption of units

Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications
received by the distributors during business hours on that date. The offer price represents the net asset value
per unit as of the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and
any provision for duties and charges, if applicable. Sales load collected, if any, is payable to the Management
Company.
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Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors receive
redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption price represents the net asset value
per unit as of the close of the business day less any back-end load, any duties, taxes, charges on redemption
and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable.

4.5 Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in
units redeemed

An equalisation account called the element of income / (loss) included in prices of units sold less those in units
redeemed is created, in order to prevent the dilution of per unit income and distribution of income already paid
out on redemption.

Element of income / (loss) represents the difference between net assets value per unit on the issuance or
redemption date, as the case may be, of units and the net assets value per unit at the beginning of the relevant
accounting period.

Further, the element of income is a transaction of capital nature and the receipt and payment of element of
income shall be taken to unit holders' fund. However, to maintain the same ex-dividend net assets value of all
units outstanding on the accounting date, net element of income contributed on issue of units lying in unit holders
fund will be refunded on units in the same proportion as dividend bears to accounting income available for
distribution.

On redemption of units, element of income is paid on units redeemed from element of income contributed by
unit holders on issue of units (i.e. return of capital) or the element of income is paid from the income earned
by the fund or the element of income is partly paid out of element of income contributed by unit holders (i.e.
return of capital) and partly from the income earned by the fund.

4.6 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive, obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and adjusted
to reflect the current best estimate.

4.7 Revenue recognition

- Realised capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the 'income statement' on
the date at which the transaction takes place.

- Unrealised capital gains / (losses) arising on re-measurement of investments classified as financial assets
‘at fair value through profit or loss' are included in the income statement in the period in which they arise.

- Mark-up / return on bank balances and term deposits, term finance certificates and sukuks, government

securities, letter of placement and commercial papers are recognised on a time apportionment basis using
the effective interest method.

4.8 Expenses

All expenses, including remuneration of the Pension Fund Manager, Trustee and annual fee to the Securities
and Exchange Commission of Pakistan fee are recognised in the Income statement on accural basis.

4.9 Taxation

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part | of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of its accounting income for the
year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders
(excluding distribution made by issuance of bonus units.
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The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

The Fund does not account for deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund intends to continue
availing the tax exemption in future years by distributing in cash at least ninety percent of its accounting income
for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, to its unit holders.

410 Distributions to the unit holders

Distributions to the unit holders are recognised upon declaration and approval by the Board of Directors of the
Management Company. Based on the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan's (MUFAP) guidelines duly consented
by the SECP, distribution for the year also includes portion of income already paid on units redeemed during
the year.

Distributions declared subsequent to the year end reporting date are considered as non-adjusting events and
are recognised in the financial statements of the period in which such distributions are declared and approved
by the Board of Directors of the Management Company.

411  Earnings per unit
Earnings per unit (EPU) can be divided by dividing the adjusted net profit to weighted average number of units,

this has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of weighted average units for
calculating EPU is not practicable.

2022 2021
Note  --------- Rupees in '000 ---------
5 BANK BALANCES
Current accounts 5.2 23,466 33,052
Savings accounts 51&5.3 324,059 640,709
347,525 673,761

5.1 These savings accounts carry profit at rates ranging from 6.50% to 16.00% per annum (June 30, 2021: 2.40%
to 7.5% per annum)

5.2 At year end these include bank balances of Rs. 0.908 million (June 30, 2021: Rs. 8.318 million), maintained
with National Bank of Pakistan.

5.3 These include a bank balances of Rs. 10.350 million and Rs. 92.2362 million (June 30, 2021: Rs. 150.209
million and Rs. 23.0826), which is maintained with National Bank of Pakistan and Bank Islamic Pakistan Limited
respectively, related parties and carries mark-up at the rate of 11.00% and 15.25% respectively (June 30, 2021:
6.80%) per annum.

2022 2021
Note  --------- Rupees in '000 ---------
6 INVESTMENTS
At fair value through profit and loss
Listed equity securities 6.1 2,455,403 4,531,878
Sukuks 6.2 339,555 599,851

2,794,958 5,131,729
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6.1 Listed equity securities
Market value Investment
Acquired Sold Market value Market value as a percentage of
. Asat during Bo'nusl during Asat asat asa aa paid up
Name of the investee company July 01, the lrlghl the June 30, June 30, percentage percentage capital of
a1 period Issue period 2 2022 of net assets . oftotal the investee
investment company
-------------------------- NUMbe of Shares «wrererereresesssssssssssssasassssusnns - Rupees in ‘000 %
OIL AND GAS MARKETING COMPANIES
Attock Petroleum Limited 104,680 - - 3,000 101,680 32671 0.01 0.79 010
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited (6.1.1) & (6.1.2) 585,071 - - 73,300 511,771 87,943 0.03 244 01
Hascol Petroleum Limited (Refer 6.1.2) 3424 - - 3424 14.45 0.00 0.00 -
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited 623,000 - - 623,000 - - - 0.36
1,316,175 - - 699,300 616,875 120,628 0.04 359
OIL AND GAS EXPLORATION COMPANIES
Ol and Gas Development Company Limited 3,147,000 137,000 - 558,000 2,726,000 214,454 0.07 6.50 0.06
Pakistan Oilfields Limited (6.1.1) 166,332 4,660 - 36,162 134,830 54,715 0.02 1.28 0.05
Pakistan Petroleum Limited (6.1.1) 3,107,069 9,600 624,189 2,492,480 168,267 0.05 543 0.09
Mari Petroleum Company Limited 215,185 - 77,108 138,077 240,218 0.08 8.37 0.10
6,635,586 151,260 - 1,205459 5,491,387 677,655 0.2 21.58
CHEMICALS
Dynea Pakistan Limited 2,500 - - - 2,500 435 0.00 0.01 0.03
ICI Pakistan Limited 46,000 - - 15,950 30,050 21,773 0.01 0.76 003
Descon Oxychem Limited 260,000 - - 260,000 - - - -
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited 3,197,000 - 2,250,285 946,715 75,387 0.02 3.25 0.10
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited - 325,000 - 325,000 - - - 011 -
3,505,500 325,000 - 2,851,235 979,265 97,505 0.03 413
PAPERS AND BOARD
Cherat Packaging Limited - - - - -
Roshan Packages Limited 199,500 - - - 199,500 2,965 0.00 0.09 0.14
199,500 - - - 199,500 2,965 0.00 0.09
FOOD AND PERSONAL CARE PRODUCTS
Al Shaheer Corporation Limited (Refer 6.1.2) 705,312 - - 693,524 11,788 107 - 0.00 001
Unity Foods 743,074 743,074 - - -
1,448,386 - - 1,436,598 11,788 107 - 0.00
ENGINEERING
International Steels Limited 162,120 - - 162,120
International Industries Limited 99,300 - - 99,300 - - - 0.27
Agha Steel Limited 1,695,500 - 7,300 1,702,800 - - - -
Mughal Iron And Steel Industries Limited 1,449,816 57,000 222,212 252,500 1,476,588 85,111 0.03 421 0.59
Aisha Steel Mills Limited - 8,000 - 8,000 - - 0.00
3,406,736 65,000 229,512 2204720 1,476,588 85,111 0.03 448
CEMENT
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited 558,386 - 558,386 - - - - -
Lucky Cement Limited 478,605 14,000 167,711 324,894 149,139 0.05 743 010
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 1014852 210,000 - 998,369 206,483 6,194 0.00 0.54 0.04
Attock Cement Pakistan Limited 58,500 30,600 - - 89,100 5,925 0.00 0.30 0.06
Kohat Cement Company Limited 917410 205,300 - 1,700 1,121,010 145,877 0.05 442 0.56
Fauji Cement Company Limited 4331500 520,000 - 2924500 1,927,000 27,306 0.01 1.88 0.14
Cherat Cement Company Limited 126,900 - - 126,900 - - - - -
FECTO Cement Limited 239,200 - - 239,200 4693 0.00 0.15 048
7,725,353 979,900 - 4777566 3,927,687 339,135 011 1472
TRANSPORT
Pakistan International Bulk Terminal Limited 1,926,000 - - 267,000 1,659,000 9,987 0.00 3.57 126
1,926,000 - - 267,000 1,659,000 9,987 0.00 3.57
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Market value Investment
Acquired Sold Market value Market value as a percentage of
. Asat during BO.HUSI during Asat asat asa asa paid up
Name of the investee company July 01, the Inghl the June 30, June 30, percentage percentage capitalof
a1 period fssue period 02 2022 of net assets . oftotal the investee
investment
company
————————————————————————— Number of Shares rererererarasesssssssssssssasasssmsenens - Rupees in ‘000 %
TEXTILE COMPOSITE
Nishat Mils Limited 1,470,300 - 868,600 601,700 44,472 0.01 232 0.17
Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited 1,584,380 22,500 - 535500 1,071,380 53,569 0.02 267 036
Interloop Limited 948,877 - 28,466 373457 603,886 36,837 0.01 1.67 007
Synthetic Products Limited (Refer 6.1.2) 546 - 44 - 590 8 0.00 0.00 -
4,004,103 22,500 28,510 1,777,551 2,277,556 134,886 0.04 6.66
FERTILIZER
Engro Corporation Limited (6.1.1) 1,186,047 - - 341,71 844,276 217,055 0.07 575 0.15
Engro Fertilizers Limited 177,490 - - 177,490 - - - -
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited - 192,000 - 168,000 24,000 486 0.00 011
1,363,537 192,000 - 687,261 868,276 217,541 0.07 5.86
POWER GENERATION AND DISTRIBUTION
The Hub Power Company Limited (6.1.1) 3,816,455 - - 702,210 3,114,245 212,298 0.07 5.99 0.24
Lalpir Power Limited 370,000 - - - 370,000 4718 0.00 013 0.10
4,186,455 - - 702,210 3,484,245 217,016 0.07 6.12
COMMERCIAL BANKS
Meezan Bank Limited (Refer 6.1.2) 1,837,401 - 272,610 680,631 1,429,380 161,492 0.05 6.30 011
1,837,401 - 212,610 680,631 1,429,380 161,492 0.05 6.30
AUTOMOBILE ASSEMBLER
Millat Tractors Limited 77,130 - 34,544 82,644 29,030 25,332 0.01 184 0.06
Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited 62,500 - 39,121 23,379 4553 0.00 0.26 0.02
139,630 - 34,544 121,765 52,409 29,885 0.01 210
AUTOMOBILE PARTS AND ACCESSORIES
Baluchistan Wheels Limited 234,500 - - - 234,500 17,822 0.01 040 1.76
Thal Limited (Refer 6.1.2) 1 - 1 - - - -
Panther tyres ftd 473,000 - 94,600 53,000 514,600 16,673 0.01 057 031
Agriautos Industries Co. Ltd. 1400 - 1,400 188 0.00 0.01 0.01
708,901 - 94,600 53,000 750,501 34,683 0.01 0.98
PHARMACEUTICALS
Glaxo Smith Kline Consumer Healthcare 13,000 - 6,300 6,700 1,597 0.00 0.04 -
IBL HealthCare Limited 122,000 - 17,300 48,300 91,000 4731 0.00 0.15 0.14
Abott Laboratries Pakistan Limited 24,000 - - 5,000 19,000 12438 0.00 041 0.02
The Searle Company Limited 352,937 22,700 99,341 169,029 305,949 33,355 0.01 133 0.10
AGP Limited 357,900 24,000 292,700 89,200 7816 0.00 031 0.03
Citi Pharma Limited - 797,833 57,883 559,500 296,216 9,669 0.00 043 0.13
869,837 844533 174,524 1,080,829 808,065 69,606 0.02 267
TECHNOLOGY AND COMMUNICATION
Avanceon Limited (Refer 6.1.2) 14,322 - 3,581 - 17,903 1,395 0.00 0.03 0.01
TPL Trakker Limited 1,298,500 - 1,178,500 120,000 1,038 0.00 0.09 0.06
Systems Limited 426,360 4,800 343,460 257419 517,201 170,604 0.05 7.28 042
1,739,182 4,800 347,041 1,435,919 655,104 173,037 0.06 740
CABLE AND ELECTRICAL GOODS
Pak Elektron Limited 1,139,000 1,183,440 1,227,000 1095440 17407 0.01 0.53 022
1,139,000 - 1,183,440 1,227,000 1,095,440 17,407 0.01 0.53
LEATHER & TANNERIES
Service GlobalFootwear Limited 262,622 262,622
262,622 - - 262,622
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Market val Investment
Acquired Sold Market value Market value AMELVAlE | asa percentage of
Asat during Bonus| during Asat asat asa asa paid up
Name of the investee company July 01, the lrlghl the June 30, June 30, percentage percentage capital of
2021 . issue . 2022 of total ¥
period period 2022 of net assets . the investee
investment
company
--------------------------- NUMbET Of ShAres wererererevesssssssssssasasssssesenennns - Rupees in ‘000 %
GLASS AND CERAMICS
Tariq Glass Industries Limited 659,500 - - 379,399 280,101 29,077 0.01 1.58 0.38
Shabbir Tiles and Ceramics Limited 2,382,500 - - 88,500 2,294,000 33,561 0.01 1.33 1.92
Ghani Value Glass Limited 61,100 - - 61,100 4,033 0.00 0.08 0.09
3,103,100 - - 467,899 2,635,201 66,670 0.02 299
MISCELLANEOUS
Pakistan Aluminium Beverage Cans Limited - 559,548 - 559,548
559,548 - 559,548
Grand Total 22,608,119 28418267 2455403 0.79 93.79
Carrying value as June 30, 2022 2,981,648
Market value as at June 30, 2021 4,531,878
Carrying value as June 30, 2021 3,738,749

All shares have a nominal face value of Rs. 10 each except for shares of Thal limited and Synthetic Products Limited Limited. which have a face value of Rs. 5.

6.1.1 Investments include shares with market value of Rs. 95.859 million (June 30, 2021: Rs. 91.63 million) which
have been pledged with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited for guaranteeing settlement of the
Fund's trades in accordance with Circular number 11 dated October 23, 2007 issued by the Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

6.1.2 The Finance Act, 2014 introduced amendments to the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 as a result of which companies
were liable to withhold five percent of the bonus shares to be issued. The shares so withheld were only to be
released if the Fund deposits tax equivalent to five percent of the value of the bonus shares issued to the Fund
including bonus shares withheld, determined on the basis of day-end price on the first day of closure of books
of the issuing company.

In this regard, a constitutional petition had been filed by Collective Investment Schemes (CISs) through their
Trustees in the High Court of Sindh, challenging the applicability of withholding tax provisions on bonus shares
received by CISs. The petition was based on the fact that because CISs are exempt from deduction of income
tax under Clause 99 Part | to the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001, the withholding tax
provision should also not be applicable on bonus shares received by CISs. A stay order had been granted by
the High Court of Sindh (HCS) in favour of CISs.

"During the year ended June 30, 2018, the Supreme Court of Pakistan passed a judgement on June 27, 2018
whereby the suits which are already pending or shall be filed in future must only be continued / entertained on
the condition that a minimum of 50 percent of the tax calculated by the tax authorities is deposited with the
authorities. Accordingly, the CISs were required to pay minimum 50% of the tax calculated by the tax authorities
for the case to remain continued. The CISs failed to deposit the minimum 50% of the tax liability and accordingly
the stay got vacated automatically during the current year. Subsequent to the year ended June 30, 2019. In
2019 the CISs have filed a fresh constitutional petition via CP 4653 dated July 11, 2019 as a result of which
the HCS issued an order dated July 15, 2019 whereby the previous stay has been restored. The matter is still
pending adjudication and no provision has been recorded or contingent liability has been disclosed in the
financial statements as the management is confident that the case will be decided in favor of the CISs.

Further, Finance Act, 2018 effective from July 1, 2018 has omitted Section 236M of Income Tax Ordinance,
2001 therefore, bonus shares, subsequent to this amendment, issued to the Fund were not withheld by the
investee companies.
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6.3 Sukuks
Number of certificates Market | Market Investment as a
percentage of
value as | value as
Name of the investee company Asat |Purchased Sold/ As at at at N I
July1, |during the dr:::]ur(::e June 30, | June 30, | June 30, assztts :?::
221 | year 9te| 2022 | 2022 | 2021
year
Rupees [T (1| — L —
All'sukuks have a face value of Rs. 5,000, 100,000 and 1,000,000 each
Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited 129 - - 129 133322 132608  238% 39.26%
Engro Powergen Thar (Pvt) Limited 20,000 - 20,000 - 100,000 - -
The HUB Power Company Limited 3,000 - 1,200 1,800 142,033 305984  253% 41.83%
Engro Polymer Chemical Limited 600 - - 600 64200 61260 1.14% 18.91%
Market value as at June 30, 2022 339,555
Carrying value as at June 30, 2022 332,458
6.3.1  Other particulars of sukuks outstanding as at June 30,2022 are as follows
Name of the investee compan: Face value Mark-up rate per annum Ratin Issue Date Maturity “date
pany (unredeemed) praiep 9

Dubai Islamic Bank Pakistan Limited 1,000,000 6 months KIBOR offer rate + 0.50% Spread ~ AA- July 14,2017 July 14, 2027
The HUB Power Company Limited 75,000 3 months KIBOR offer rate + 1.90% Spread ~ AA+  August 22,2019  August 22, 2023
Engro Polymer Chemical Limited 100,000 3 months KIBOR offer rate + 0.90% Spread ~~ AA  January 11,2019 July 11, 2026

6.4 Non-performing sukuk classified as fair value through profit and loss

Number of certificates Investment as a percentage of
Market
. Asat | Purchased Sold/ Asat | valueasat Market
Name of the investee company Note , matured Net value of Issue
July 01, | during the during the June30,| June 30, assels total ize
221 | year 9t 202 2022 _
year investments
Number of certificates Rupees in ‘000 %
Eden Housing Limited 6.4.3 5,000 - - 5,000
Carrying value as at June 30, 2022 4922
Accumulated impairment 4,922

All sukuks have a face value of Rs. 5,000 each.

6.4.1 This represents investment in privately placed sukuks with a term of five years. On May 6, 2011, the investee
company defaulted its principal and profit payment and therefore it was classified as non performing asset by
MUFAP. The amount of provision as per Circular no. 1 of 2009 and Circular no. 33 of 2012 has been maintained
by valuing the investment in terms of the said circulars.

6.4.2 The sukuks held by the Fund are generally secured against hypothecation of stocks and receivables and
mortgage of fixed assets of the issuer.
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6.4.3 Other particulars of sukuk outstanding as at June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Name of the investee Face value Mark-up rate per annum | Ratin Issue Maturity
company (unredeemed) P P g date date
Eden House Limited 984 6 Month KIBOR plus 2.5% Not rated March 31,2008 March 31,2013
2022 2021
6.5 Net unrealised (dimunition)/ appreciation on re- Note  -------—-- Rupees in '000----------
measurement of investments
Market value of investments 6.1-6.3 2,794,958 5,131,729
Less: carrying value of investments before mark to market 6.1-6.3 2,275,810 (4,338,797)
(519,148) 792,932
7 MARK-UP ACCRUED AND DIVIDEND RECEIVABLE
Mark-up accrued on bank balances 5,096 3,995
Mark-up accrued on government securities - -
Mark-up accrued on sukuks 11,324 10,264
Dividend receivable 215 1,948
16,635 16,207
8 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Security deposits with:
- National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 2,500 2,500
- Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 100 100
Advance tax 3,686 3,686
Advance against IPO Subscription - 32,486
Prepayments 138 135
6,424 38,907
9 RECEIVABLE AGAINST TRANSFER OF UNITS

This represents amount receivable from other collective investment scheme being managed by the Management
Company of the Fund. This amount was received during the period in respect of units issued to various unit
holders based on their request for transfer of units from other collective investment scheme to the Fund.

10 PAYABLE TO NBP FUND MANAGEMENT LIMITED

- MANAGEMENT COMPANY 2022 2021
Note  --------- Rupees in '000 ---------

Remuneration of the Management Company 10.1 5,145 7,169
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 10.2 669 932
Reimbursement of Operational expenses 10.3 1,723 2,174
Reimbursement of Selling and marketing expenses 10.4 11,199 25,363
Reimbursement of Sales load and other transfer load 1,169 24,296
ADC Charges Payable to AMC 124 90
Sindh Sales Tax and Federal Excise Duty on sales load 17,701 23,595

37,730 83,619
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10.1  Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, The Management Company has charged its remuneration at
the rate of 2% of the average annual net assets of the Fund. The remuneration is payable to the Management
Company monthly in arrears.

10.2  This represents amount payable in respect of Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (June 30, 2021: 13%) on the
remuneration of the Management Company through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

10.3 In accordance with clause 60(s) of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008
the Management Company is allowed to charge "fees and expenses related to registrar services, accounting,
operation and valuation services related to CIS. Accordingly, such expense has been charged at the rate of
0.15% of average annual net assets of the fund till July 25, 2021 and thereafter at the rate of 0.2% of average
annual net assets of the fund.

10.4 The Management Company based on its own discretion has charged selling and marketing expenses at the
below mentioned rates duly approved by the Board of Directors of the Management Company:

Effective Dates Applicable Rates
From Jan 26, 2021 till June 30, 2021 1.75% per annum of average daily net assets
From Aug 23, 2021 till February 01, 2022 1.8% per annum of average daily net assets
From Feb 02, 2022 till June 30, 2022 1.3% per annum of average daily net assets
2022 2021
1" PAYABLE TO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY Note  ——---—--- Rupees in '000 ---------
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED - TRUSTEE
Remuneration of the Trustee 11.1 339 560
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration 11.2 44 73
383 633

1.1  The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the provisions of
the trust deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily net assets of the Fund. The remuneration
is payable to the trustee monthly in arrears.

The applicability of tariff structure to the Fund is same as upto Rs 1 billion of Net Assets @ 0.20% or 0.7 million
per annum (whichever is higher) and over 1 billion Rs 2 million plus 0.10% per annum of Net Assets on amount
exceeding Rs 1 billion.

Effective from 1 July, 2019 tariff structure to the Fund is revised as upto Rs 1 billion of Net Assets .@ 0.20%
per annum and over 1 billion Rs 2 million plus 0.10% per annum of Net Assets on amount exceeding Rs 1
billion.

11.2  This represents amount payable in respect of Sindh Sales Tax at the rate of 13% (2021: 13%) on the remuneration
of the Trustee through the Sindh Sales Tax on Services Act, 2011.

12 PAYABLE TO THE SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION OF PAKISTAN

Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations, a collective investment scheme categorised as an "asset
allocation scheme" is required to pay as annual fee to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
Effective from July 1, 2019, fee has been reduced to 0.02% per annum from 0.075% per annum. The fee is
paid annually in arrears.
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13 PAYABLE AGAINST REDEMPTION OF UNITS

This represents amounts payable to other collective investment schemes being managed by the Management
Company of the Fund. These amounts are paid during the year in respect of units redeemed by various unit
holders based on their request for transfer of units from the Fund to the other collective investment schemes.

2022 2021
14 ACCRUED EXPENSES AND OTHER LIABILITIES Note  --------- Rupees in '000 ---------
Auditors' remuneration 581 542
Provision for Sindh Workers' Welfare Fund 19 - 89,944
Federal Excise Duty on remuneration of the
Management Company 141 18,406 18,406
Brokerage charges 163 1,779
Bank charges 125 226
Settlement charges 175 645
Printing charges 124 74
Charity 14.2 10,549 6,696
Withholding tax 169 21,945
Capital gain tax 124 2,812
Others 924 1,123
31,340 144,192

141 As per the requirement of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16% on the
remuneration of the Management Company has been applied effective from June 13, 2013. The Management
Company is of the view that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial sales tax, further levy
of FED may result in double taxation, which does not appear to be the spirit of the law, hence, a petition was
collectively filed by the Mutual Funds Association of Pakistan with the Sindh High Court (SHC) on September
04, 2013.

The Honorable Sindh High Court (SHC) through its recent order dated June 02, 2016, in CPD-3184 of 2014
(and others) filed by various taxpayers, has interalia declared that Federal Excise Act 2005 (FED Act) is on
services, other than shipping agents and related services, is ultra vires to the Constitution from July 01, 2011.
However, the declaration made by the Honorable Court, as directed, will have affect in the manner prescribed
in the judgment. The Sindh High Court in its decision dated July 16, 2016 in respect of constitutional petition
filed by management companies of mutual funds maintained the previous order on the FED.

Sindh Revenue Board and Federal Board of Revenue have filed appeals before Honorable Supreme Court
against the Sindh High Court's decision dated June 02, 2016, which is pending for the decision. However, after
the exclusion of the mutual funds from federal statute on FED from July 01, 2016, the Fund has discontinued
making the provision in this regard.

Since the appeal is pending in the Supreme Court of Pakistan, the Management Company as a matter of
abundant caution has retained provision for FED on management fee aggregating to Rs. 18.406 million. Had
the provision not been made, the Net Asset Value per unit of the Fund would have been higher by Rs. 0.0904
(June 30, 2021: Rs. 0.0548) per unit.

14.2  According to the instructions of the shariah advisor, any income earned by the Fund from investments whereby
portion of the investment of such investees has been made in shariah non-compliant avenues, such proportion
of income of the Fund from those investees should be given away for charitable purposes directly by the Fund.
Accordingly, an amount of Rs. 10.220 million (June 30, 2021: Rs 6.696 million) is outstanding in this regard
after making charity payments of Rs.3.3096 million (June 30, 2021: Rs. 8.583 million) to charitable institutions.
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15 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

There were no contingencies and commitments outstanding as at June 30, 2022 and June 30, 2021.

2022 2021
16 NUMBER OF UNITS IN ISSUE [\ (o) (- Je— Number of units ===----.
Total units in issue at the beginning of the year 16.1 335,637,170 355,582,420
Add: units issued during the year 81,762,305 264,935,511
Less: units redeemed during the year (213,703,351) (284,880,761)
Total units in issue at the end of the year 203,696,124 335,637,170

17 NET ASSET VALUE PER UNIT

The net asset value per unit as disclosed in the statement of assets and liabilities is calculated by dividing the
net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.

2022 2021
18 AUDITORS' REMUNERATION e Rupees in '000 ---------
Annual audit fee 417 390
Half yearly review fee 166 155
Income Certification, out of pocket and sales tax expenses 121 97
704 642

19 SINDH WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

'During the month of August 2021, provisioning against Sindh Workers’ Welfare Fund by NBP Islamic Sarmaya
Izafa Fund amounting to Rs. 89.944 million has been reversed on the clarification received by Sindh Revenue
Board vide letter No. SRB/TP/70/2013/8772 dated August 12, 2021 addressed to Mutual Funds Association
of Pakistan. This reversal of provision has contributed towards an unusual increase in NAV of the NBP Islamic
Sarmaya Izafa Fund by 1.69% on August 13, 2021. This is one-off event and is not likely to be repeated in the
future.

20 TAXATION

The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause (99) of Part | of the Second Schedule to the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the
year as reduced by capital gains, whether realised or unrealised, is distributed amongst the unit holders as
cash dividend. Furthermore, as per Regulation 63 of the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities
Regulations, 2008, the Fund is required to distribute not less than 90% of its accounting income for the year
derived from sources other than capital gains as reduced by such expenses as are chargeable thereon to the
unit holders. The fund has not recorded any tax liability as the fund has incurred a net loss for the year.

The Fund is also exempt from the provision of Section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the
Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

21 EARNINGS PER UNIT

Earnings per unit (EPU) has not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of weighted
average units for calculating EPU is not practicable.
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22 DETAILS OF NON-COMPLIANT INVESTMENTS

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide Circular no. 7 of 2009 dated March 6, 2009, required
all Asset Management Companies to classify funds under their management on the basis of categorisation
criteria laid down in the circular. The Board has approved the category of the fund as 'Income Scheme'.

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan vide its Circular no. 16 dated July 7, 2010, prescribed
specific disclosures for the schemes holding investments that are non-compliant either with the minimum
investment criteria specified for the category assigned to such schemes or with the investment requirements
of their constitutive documents.

Value of Value of
Names of non-compliant . Typeof | investment | Provision | investment| %ofnet | %ofnet | % of gross
) Non-compliance of clause |,
investment investment |  before held after assets assets assets
provision provision
Eden Housing Rating is below investment grade as  Sukuks 4922 (4.922)
Limited prescribed in clause 9 (v) of the Note (6.4)

annexure of circular no. 7 of 2009

221  Atthe time of purchase, these sukuks were in compliance with the aforementioned circular. However, they were
subsequently defaulted or were downgraded to non investment grade.

23 TOTAL EXPENSE RATIO

Total expense ratio (all the expenses incurred during the year divided by average net asset for the year) is 4%
per annum including 0.25% representing government levies on Collective Investment Schemes such as sales
tax, provision for Sindh Worker's Welfare Fund and Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan fee for
the year.

24 TRANSACTIONS WITH CONNECTED PERSONS AND RELATED PARTIES

241  Connected persons and related parties include NBP Fund Management Limited being the Management Company,
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited being the Trustee, National Bank of Pakistan being the Parent
of the Management Company and Baltoro Growth Fund being the sponsor of the Management Company. It
also includes associated companies of Management Company due to common directorship, post employment
benefit funds of the Management Company its parent and sponsor.

It also includes associated companies of management company due to common directorship, post-employment
benefit funds of the Management Company, its parent and sponsor. It also includes subsidiaries and associated
companies of the parent of the Management Company and other collective investment schemes (CIS) managed
by the Management Company, directors and key management personnel of the Management Company and
any person or company beneficially owning directly or indirectly 10% or more of the units in issue / net assets
of the Fund.

24.2 The transactions with connected persons and related parties are carried out at agreed term.

24.3 Remuneration of the Management Company is determined in accordance with the provisions of the NBFC
Regulations.

24.4 Remuneration of the Trustee is determined in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed.
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24.5 Details of transactions with connected persons and related parties are as follows:

2022 2021
--------- Rupees in '000 ---------

NBP Fund Management Limited - Management Company

Remuneration of the Management Company 75,543 87,488
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company 9,821 11,373
Reimbursement of operational expenses to the Management Company 8,858 7,831
Sales load payable to Management Company 13,502 56,481
Sindh Sales Tax and Federal Excise Duty on sales load 1,755 7,343
Reimbursement of Selling and marketing expenses 73,385 93,834
ADC Share Charges including Sindh Sales Tax 253 262
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (Trustee)

Remuneration of the Trustee 5,525 6,833
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 718 888
CDS charges 367 226
Employees of the Management Company

Units issued / transferred in: 2,418,109 units (2021: 3,742,107 units) 39,959 60,179
Units redeemed / transferred out: 2,537,890 units (2021: 4,017,778 units) 42,064 65,125
Dividend re-invest: Nil units (2021: 1,105 units) - 19
NBP Fund Management Limited

Units issued / transferred in: 10,487,687 units (2021: Nil units) 168,006 -
Units redeemed / transferred out: 5,243,844 units (2021: Nil units) 81,821 -
Chief Financial Officer

Units issued / transferred in: 57,441 units (2021: Nil units) 1,000 -
Units redeemed / transferred out: 32,539 units (2021: Nil units) 550 -

Taurus Securities Limited
(Subsidiary of Parent of the Management Company)
Brokerage charges 304 291

National Bank of Pakistan (Parent of the Management Company)
Mark-up Income 9,055 84

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company)

Mark-up on bank balances 7,569 4,902
Purchase of sukuk - 761,756
Sale of sukuk - 761,153

International Industries Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company)*

Shares purchased: Nil shares (2021: 99,300) - 21,475
Shares sold: Nil shares (2021: 56,370) - 7,769
Dividend income - 105

International Steel Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company)

Shares purchased: Nil shares (2021: 170,42) - 14,727
Shares sold: 162,120 shares (2021: 649,212) 12,154 45,634
Dividend income 1,134 -
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2022 2021

Cherat Cement Company Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company) *

Rupees in '000 ---------

Shares purchased: Nil shares (2021: 239,400) - 40,196
Shares sold: Nil shares (2021: 112,500) - 19,256
Dividend income - 177
The Hub power Company Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company) *
Shares purchased: Nil shares (2021: 900,000) - 74,598
Shares sold: Nil shares (2021: 430,500) - 34,287
Dividend income - 22,725
Purchase of Sukuk - -
Sukuk Income - 27,912
NBP Islamic Income Fund

(Fund Managed by Management Company)
Sale of Sukuk 102,133 302,184
NBP Riba-Savings Fund

(Fund Managed by Management Company)
Purchase of Sukuk - 297,813
Sale of Sukuk - 100,744
National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited **

(Common Directorship with the Management Company)
NCCPL Charges 412 486
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited *
(Common Directorship with the Management Company)
Listing fee paid - 25
Portfolio managed by Management Company
Units issued / transferred in: 411,412 units (2021: Nil units) 6,650 -
Units redeemed / transferred out 1,083,417 units (2021: 111,712 units) 18,212 1,865

* Current period transactions with these parties have not been disclosed as they did not remain connected

persons and related parties during the period.

**Prior period transactions with these parties have not been disclosed as they were not connected persons and

related parties during prior periods.

24.6 Details of amounts outstanding as at year end with connected persons are as follows :

2022 2021

NBP Fund Management Limited - Management Company
Remuneration of the Management Company

Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Management Company
Reimbursement of Operational expenses

Sales load and transfer load payable to Management Company
Sindh Sales Tax and Federal Excise Duty on sales load
Reimbursement of Selling and marketing expenses

ADC Charges Payable to Management Company

Rupees in '000 ---------

5,145 7,169
669 932
1,723 2,174
1,169 24,296
17,701 23,595
11,199 25,363
124 90
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2022 2021
--------- Rupees in '000 ---------

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (Trustee)

Remuneration of the Trustee 339 560
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee 44 73
CDS charges 92 257
Security deposit 100 100

Chief Financial Officer
Investment held in the Fund 24,902 units (2021: Nil units) 379 -

NBP Fund Management Limited
Investment held in the Fund 5,243,844 units (2021: Nil units) 79,865 -

National Bank of Pakistan (Parent of the Management Company)

Bank balances 11,258 158,526
Mark-up accrued 126 8

International Industries Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company)*

Ordinary shares held: Nil shares (2021: 99,300 shares) - 20,954

International Steel Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company)

Ordinary shares held: Nil shares (2021: 162,120 shares) - 15,144

Bank Islami Pakistan Limited

(Common directorship with the Management Company)

Bank balances 92,236 23,083
Mark-up accrued 1,175 1

Cherat Cement Company Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company) *
Ordinary shares held: Nil shares (2021: 126,900 shares) - 22,510

Askari Bank Limited

(Common directorship with the Management Company) *

Bank balance - 11
Mark-up accrued -

The Hub power Company Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company) *

Ordinary shares held Nil shares (2021: 3,816,455 shares) - 304,057
Investment in sukuk - 305,984
Profit Receivable - 3,077

National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited **

(Common Directorship with the Management Company)

NCCPL Charges payable 83 388
Security Deposit 2,500 2,500
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2022 2021
--------- Rupees in '000 ---------

Summit Bank Limited
(Common directorship with the Management Company) *
Bank balances - 9,733

Employees of the Management Company
Investment held in the Fund 108,789 units (2021: 197,093 units) 1,657 3,295

Portfolio managed by Management Company
Investment held in the Fund 208,894 units (2021: Nil units) 3,181 -

25 PARTICULARS OF INVESTMENT COMMITTEE AND FUND MANAGER

Details of members of the investment committee of the Fund are as follows:

S.No. Name Qualification Experience
1 Dr. Amjad Waheed Doctorate in Business Administration, MBA and CFA 34
2 Mr. Asim Wahab Khan CFA 16
3 Mr. Salman Ahmed CFA 17
4 Mr. Usama Bin Razi BE, MBA 18
5 Mr. Hassan Raza ACCA, BSC and CFA 11

251 The name of the Fund Manager is Asim Wahab Khan. Other funds managed by the Fund Manager are as
follows:

Name Qualification Other funds managed by the Fund Manager

Mr. Asim Wahab Khan CFA NBF, NIRIF, NIEF, NIAAEF, NSIF, NBF, NSF,
NIAAF-II, NIAAF-IIl, NICPP-VI, NFSF & NGEIF

26 TRANSACTIONS WITH BROKERS / DEALERS

List of top ten brokers by percentage of commission charged during the year ended June 30, 2022.

S.No Broker name Percentage (%)
1 Taurus Securities Ltd. 9.76
2 Intermarket Securities 5.35
3 Foundation Securities 3.75
4 Alfalah Securities 3.75
5 Habib Metropolitan Financial Services 4.87
6 JS Global Capital Limited 1.31
7 Arif Habib Securities 3.39
8 Bma Capital Management Limited 4.62
9 Ismail Igbal Securities (PVT) Ltd. 6.92
10 EFG Hermes Pakistan Ltd. 4.09
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List of top ten brokers by percentage of commission charged during the year ended June 30, 2021.

S.No Broker name Percentage (%)
1 Taurus Securities Ltd. 6.32
2 Alfalah Securities (Pvt) Limited 6.27
3 Arif Habib Securities Limited 6.01
4 Efg Hermes Pakistan Ltd 5.79
5 Insight Securities (Pvt.) Limited 4.87
6 Optimus Capital Management Limited 4.82
7 Foundation Securities 4.65
8 Topline Securities Limited 4.62
9 Intermarket Securities 4.38
10 Bma Capital Management Limited 4.34

27 PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

Number Net asset Percentage
.. |value of the
Category of unit of
amount .
holders . investment
invested

----- Rupees in '000----- %
As at June 30, 2022
Individuals 5,811 2,243,822 72.33
Insurance Companies 3 14,960 0.48
Retirement Funds 53 625,834 20.17
Public Limited Companies 1 359 0.01
Others 37 217,364 7.01

5,905 3,102,338 100
As at June 30, 2021
Individuals 7,792 4,006,111 71.39
Insurance companies 3 11,351 0.20
Retirement funds 59 904,570 16.12
Public limited companies 3 325,040 5.79
Others 61 364,344 6.49
7,918 5,611,417 100

28 ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

"The 81st, 82nd, 83rd, 84th, and 85th Board Meetings were held on July 07, 2021, September 16, 2021, October
29, 2021, February 23, 2022 and April 27, 2022, respectively. Information in respect of attendance by directors
in the meetings is given below:

. Number of meetings Meetings not
Name of directors ttended
Held Attended | Leave granted attende
Shaikh Muhammad Abdul Wahid Sethi 5 5 - -
*Syed Hasan Irtiza Kazmi - - - -
**Tauqeer Mazhar 4 4 -
Mehnaz Salar 5 5 - -
Ali Saigol 5 5 - -
Imran Zaffar 5 4 1 85th BOD Meeting
Khalid Mansoor 5 4 1 82nd BOD Meeting
Saad Amanullah Khan 5 5 - -
Humayun Bashir 5 5 - -
Amjad Waheed 5 5 - -
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28.1  *Mr. Syed Hasan Irtiza Kazmi Resigned from the board with effect from June 25, 2021.
28.2  ** Mr. Taugeer Mazhar opted as Director on the Board with effect from August 04, 2021.
29 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

At fair value At
through profit | amortized Total
or loss cost

As at June 30, 2022

Financial assets

Bank balances - 347,525 347,525
Investments 2,794,959 - 2,794,959
Mark-up accrued and dividend receivable - 16,635 16,635
Receivable against transfer of units - 6,819 6,819
Deposits - 2,600 2,600

2,794,959 373,579 3,168,538

Financial liabilities

Payable to the Management Company - 37,728 37,728
Payable to the Trustee - 383 383
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 2,092 2,092
Net assets attributable to redeemable units - 3,102,338 3,102,338

- 3,142,542 3,142,542

At fair value At
through profit | amortized Total
or loss cost

------- Rupees in '000-------=---
As at June 30, 2021

Financial assets

Bank balances - 673,761 673,761
Investments 5,131,729 - 5,131,729
Mark-up accrued and dividend receivable - 16,207 16,207
Receivable against sale of investments - 4,569 4,569
Deposits - 35,085 35,085

5,131,729 729,622 5,861,351

Financial liabilities

Payable to the Management Company - 83,529 83,529
Payable to the Trustee - 633 633
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 4,389 4,389
Net assets attributable to redeemable units - 5,611,416 5,611,416

5,699,968 5,699,968

30 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

30.1 Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate as a
result of changes in market prices.
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The Management Company manages the market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by
following the regulations laid down by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.
30.1.1 Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result
of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present is not exposed to currency risk as its operations
are geographically restricted to Pakistan and all transactions are carried out in Pakistani Rupees.

30.1.2 Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a
result of changes in market interest rates.

a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

As at June 30, 2022, the Fund holds balance in saving accounts and sukuks which are exposed to interest
rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase / decrease in bank profit rates as on June 30, 2022, the
net assets of the Fund would have been higher / lower by approximately Rs. 663.615 million. (June 30,
2021: Rs. 12,405.598 million)

b) Sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Fund Sukuks that expose the Fund to fair value interest rate risk as at June 30, 2022. In case of 100
basis points increase in coupon rate on June 30, 2022, with all other variables held constant, the net
assets of the Fund and net income for the year would have been higher by Rs. 0 (June 30, 2021: Rs. 0
million) and net income for the year would have been higher by Rs. Nil (June 30, 2021: Rs. 10.9975). In
case of 100 basis points decrease in KIBOR , with all other variables held constant, the net assets of the
Fund and net income for the year would have been lower by Rs. Nil (June 30, 2021: Rs. 8.2721 million).

- Exposed to yield / interest rate risk | Not exposed
Yield/ to yield /
Interest Total Upto three More than interest rate
rate three months .
months risk
and up to one year
% Rupees in '000

As at June 30, 2022
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 6.50 - 16 347,525 23,466 - 324,059
Investments 11.90 - 16.5€ 2,794,959 - - 2,455,403
Mark-up accrued and dividend receivable 16,635 - - 16,635
Deposits 2,600 - - 2,600

3,161,719 23,466 - 2,798,697
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 37,730 - - 37,730
Payable to the Trustee 383 - - 383
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,389 - - 4,389
Net assets attributable to redeemable units 3,102,338 - - 5,611,417

3,144,840 - - 5,653,919
On-balance sheet gap 16,879 23,466 - (2,855,222)
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - -
Off-balance sheet gap - - -
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. Exposed to yield / interest rate risk | Not exposed
Yield / to yield /
Interest Total Unto three More than interest rat
rate P three months in ert?s rate
months risk
and up to one year
% Rupees in '000
As at June 30, 2021
On-balance sheet financial instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances 2.40-7.50 673,761 33,052 - 640,709
Investments 6.63-15.50 5,131,729 - 599,851 4,531,878
Mark-up accrued and dividend receivable 16,207 - - 16,207
Deposits 2,600 - - 2,600
5,824,297 33,052 599,851 5,191,394
Financial liabilities
Payable to the Management Company 83,529 - - 83,529
Payable to the Trustee 633 - - 633
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,389 - - 4,389
Net assets attributable to redeemable units 5,611,416 - - 5,611,416
5,699,967 - - 5,699,967

On-balance sheet gap 124,330 33,052 599,851 (508,574)
Off-balance sheet financial instruments - - - -
Off-balance sheet gap - - -

30.1.3 Pricerisk

Price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of
changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those changes
are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar
financial instruments traded in the market.

The Fund is exposed to equity price risk because of the investments held by the Fund and classified in the
'statement of assets and liabilities' as financial asset 'at fair value through profit or loss'. The Fund manages
price risk by limiting individual equity securities to not more than ten percent of net assets attributable to holders
of the Fund's assets. Moreover, the sector limits have also been restricted to twenty five percent. The equity
investments are listed in the Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The Fund's policy requires that the overall
market position is monitored on a daily basis by the Fund Manager and is reviewed on a regular basis by the
investment committee as well as the Board of Directors.

In case of 5% increase / decrease in fair value of interest on June 30, 2022, the net income for the year would
increase / decrease by Rs. 92.281 million (June 30, 2021: Rs. 134.313 million) and net assets of the Fund
would increase / decrease by the same amount. The sensitivity analysis is based on the Fund's equity security
as at the statements of assets and liabilities date with all other variables held constant.

30.2 Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk of a loss if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. Credit risk arises from
balances with banks and financial institutions, credit exposure arising as a result of dividends receivable on
equity securities, receivable against sale of investments and accrued mark-up on bank balances, deposits and
other receivables. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited because the counter parties are financial institutions
with reasonably high credit ratings. Credit risk also arises from the inability of the relevant brokerage house or
the counter party to fulfill their obligations. There is a possibility of default by participants or failure of the financial
markets / stock exchanges, the depositories, the settlements or clearing system, etc. The settlement risk of
default on equity securities is considered minimal due to inherent systematic measures taken therein.
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The Fund'’s policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management policies
and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee. The Fund does not expect to incur material
credit losses on its financial assets.

The Fund's significant credit risk arises mainly on account of its placements with banks. The credit rating profile

of balances with banks is as follow:

Bank balances by rating category 2022 2021
AAA 70.67% 79.84%
AA+ 0.02% 0.03%
AA 0.83% 12.85%
AA- 1.60% 1.68%
A+ 26.85% 3.59%
A 0.01% 2.00%
A- 0.02% 0.01%
100% 100%

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancement as at June 30, 2022 is as follows:

June 30, 2022 June 30, 2021
Amount of . Amount of .
i . Maximum ) . Maximum
financial financial
Exposure Exposure
assets assets
Rupees in '000
Bank balances 347,525 347,525 673,761 673,761
Investments 2,794,958 2,794,958 5,131,729 5,131,729
Mark-up accrued and dividend receivable 16,635 16,635 16,207 16,207
Receivable against transfer of units 6,819 6,819 4,569 4,569
Deposits 2,500 2,500 2,600 2,600
3,168,437 3,168,437 5,828,866 5,828,866

Concentration of credit risk

The Fund mainly deals in equity securities which are primarily subject to price risk. The concentration of credit
risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of counterparties whose
aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's total credit exposure.The Fund’s portfolio of
financial instruments is broadly diversified and transactions are entered into with diverse credit-worthy
counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.

30.3

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund may not be able to generate sufficient cash resources to settle its obligation
in full as they fall due or can only do so on terms that are materially disadvantageous to the Fund.

The Fund is exposed to settlement of equity securities and to daily cash redemptions at the option of unit
holders. The Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always
have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions, without
incurring unacceptable losses or risking damages to the Fund's reputation. Its policy is therefore to invest the
majority of its assets in investments that are traded in an active market and can be readily disposed and are
considered readily realisable.

For the purpose of making redemptions, the Fund has the ability to borrow in the short term to ensure settlement.
The maximum amount available to the Fund from the borrowing would be limited to fifteen percent of the net
assets upto 90 days and would be secured by the assets of the Fund. The facility would bear interest at
commercial rates. However, no borrowing was obtained by the Fund during the current year.
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In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess
of ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for
being processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption
requests come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. The Fund did not withhold any
significant redemptions during the year.

The table below analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining
period at the reporting date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

Up to
three Total
months

As at June 30, 2022
Financial liabilities

Payable to the Management Company 37,728 37,728
Payable to the Trustee 384 384
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 2,218 2,218
Net assets attributable to redeemable units 3,102,338 3,102,338

3,142,668 3,142,668

As at June 30, 2021
Financial liabilities

Payable to the Management Company 83,529 83,529
Payable to the Trustee 633 633
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 4,389 4,389
Net assets attributable to redeemable units 5,611,416 5,611,416

5,699,967 5,699,967

There is no financial asset and final liability having maturity more than three months
31 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

Underlying the definition of fair value is the presumption that the Fund is a going concern without any intention
or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on
the quoted market prices at the close of trading on the period end date. The quoted market prices used for
financial assets held by the Fund is current bid price.The fair value of financial assets and liabilities traded in
active markets i.e. listed equity shares are based on the quoted market prices at the close of trading on the
period end date. The quoted market prices used for financial assets held by the Fund is current bid price.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and regularly
available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those
prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's length basis.

IFRS 13, 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements using a fair value
hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

*Level 1:  Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices).
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» Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable

inputs).
Carrying amount Fair value
Fair value .
through | AT | rol | Level | Level2 | Tota
. cost
profit & loss

Rupees in '000

June 30, 2022

Financial assets measured at fair value

Government securities - ljarah sukuks - - - - - -
Sukuks 339,555 - 339,555 - 339,555 339,555

Listed equity securities 2,455,403 - 2455403 2455403 - 2,455,403
2,794,958 - 2,794,958 2455403 339,555 2,794,958

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Bank balances - 673,761 673,761

Mark-up accrued and - 16,207 16,207

Receivable against transfer of units - 4,569 4,569

Deposits - 2,600 2,600

697,137 697,137

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to NBP Fund Management Limited - Management Company . 37,728 37,728
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 384 384
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan - 905 905
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 2,096 2,096

4,113 41,113

June 30, 2021
Financial assets measured at fair value

Sukuks 599,851 - 599,851 - 599,851 599,851

Listed equity securities 4,531,878 - 4531878 4531878 - 4531878
5,131,729 - 5131729 4531878 599,851 5131,729

Financial assets not measured at fair value

Bank balances 673,761 673,761

Mark-up accrued and 16,207 16,207

Receivable against sale of investment 4,569 4,569

Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 2,600 2,600

697,137 697,137

Financial liabilities not measured at fair value

Payable to NBP Fund Management Limited - Management Company - 83,529 83,529
Payable to Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited - Trustee - 633 633
Payable to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan - 1,166 1,166
Accrued expenses and other liabilities - 4,389 4,389

89717 89117
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The Fund has not disclosed the fair values for other financial assets and financial liabilities, as these are either
short term in nature or repriced periodically. Therefore, their carrying amounts are reasonable approximation
of fair value.

32 UNIT HOLDERS' FUND RISK MANAGEMENT

The unit holders' fund is represented by redeemable units. These units are entitled to distributions and to
payment of a proportionate share, based on the Fund's net asset value per unit on the redemption date. The
relevant movements are shown in the statement of movement in unit holders' fund.

The Fund has no restrictions on the issuance and redemption of units. As required under the NBFC Regulations,
2008 every open end scheme shall maintain fund size (i.e. net assets of the Fund) of Rs. 100 million at all times
during the life of the scheme. The Fund has historically maintain and complied with the requirement of minimum
fund size at all times.

The Fund's objectives when managing unit holders' fund are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going
concern so that it can continue to provide returns to unit holders and to maintain a strong base of assets under
management.
In accordance with the risk management policies stated in note 28, the Fund endeavours to invest the subscriptions
received in appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption requests which
would be augmented by short-term borrowings or disposal of investments where necessary.

33 DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors of the Management Company
on September 27, 2022.

34 GENERAL
34.1  Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.
34.2 Corresponding figures have been rearranged or reclassified, where necessary, for the purposes of better

presentation. No significant rearrangement or reclassification was made in these financial statements during
the current year.

For NBP Fund Management Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Financial Officer Chief Executive Officer Director
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PERFORMANCE TABLE
For the For the For the For the For the For the
Particulars year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended year ended

June 30,2022 | June 30,2021 | June 30,2020 | June 30,2019 | June 30,2018 | June 30,2017
Net assets at the year / period ended (Rs '000) 3,102,338 5,611,416 5,043,970 6,855,373 11,502,349] 14,764,233
Net income for the year / period ended (Rs '000) (314,141) 1,084,365 340,639 (1,096,871) (1,323,940) 2,345,440
Net Asset Value per unit at the year / period ended (Rs) 15.2302 16.7187 14.1851 13.7410 15.5128 17.0820
Offer price per unit 15.7465 17.2855 14.6660 14.2068 16.0387 17.6611
Redemption price per unit 15.2302 16.7187 14.1851 13.7410 155128 17.0820
Ex - Highest offer price per unit (Rs.) 18.2369 17.7241 16.6461 17.8306 209116
Ex - Lowest offer price per unit (Rs.) 154676 144431 12.0508 15.2740 16.3405
Ex - Highest redemption price per unit (Rs.) 17.6389 17.1430 16.1003 17.2460 18.3107
Ex - Lowest redemption price per unit (Rs.) 14.9604 13.9695 11.6557 14.7732 14.2000
Opening Nav of Fiscal Year 16.7187 137819 13.0857 15.5128 16.9827 14.1982
Total return of the fund -8.90%] 21.31% 8.57% -8.66% 20.31%
- capital gowth -8.90% 18.38% 340% -8.66% 8.78%
- income distribution as a % of ex nav - 2.93% 517% - - 11.53%
- income distribution as a % of par value - 4.97% 7.25% - - 16.38%
Distribution
Interim distribution per unit (Rs) - 04974 0.7252 - - 1.6376
Final distribution per unit (Rs) - - 0.0037
Distribution Dates
Interim - 23-Jun-21 26-Jun-20 - |21-dun-17
Final 15-Sep-17
Average annual return of the fund (launch date October 29, 2007)
(Since inception to June 30, 2022) 10.46%
(Since inception to June 30, 2021) 12.03%
(Since inception to June 30, 2020) 11.33%
(Since inception to June 30, 2019) 11.60%
(Since inception to June 30, 2018) 14.01%
(Since inception to June 30, 2017) 16.65%
(Since inception to June 30, 2016)
(Since inception to June 30, 2015)
(Since inception to June 30, 2014)
(Since inception to June 30, 2013)
(Since inception to June 30, 2012)
(Since inception to June 30, 2011)
(Since inception to June 30, 2010)
Portfolio Composition ( Please see Fund Manager Report)

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and that unit prices and investment returns may go down, as well as up
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PROXY ISSUED BY THE FUND

The proxy voting policy of NBP Islamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund, duly approved by Board of Directors of the Management
Company, is available on the website of NBP Fund Management Limited i.e. www.nbpfunds.com. A detailed information

regarding actual proxies voted by the Management Company in respect of the fund is also available without charge,
upon request, to all unit holders.

The details of summarized proxies voted are as follows:

NBP Islamic Sarmaya lzafa Fund
| Resolutions| For | Against|Abstain*

Number 10 10 Nil N/A
(%) 100% 100% - -
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